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Glaister House
Name of Property

Number of Resources within Property
(Do not include previously listed resources in the count)

Contributing Noncontributing
1
1 0

Ingham Co., Ml

County and State

buildings
sites
structures
objects

Total

Number of contributing resources previously listed in the National Register __ N/A

6. Function or Use

Historic Functions

(Enter categories from instructions.)
Domestic-Single Dwelling

_Domestic-Multiple Dwelling
Health Care-Clinic

Current Functions
(Enter categories from instructions.)
Domestic-Multiple Dwelling
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7. Description

Architectural Classification
(Enter categories from instructions.)
_Italianate

Materials: (enter categories from instructions.)
Principal exterior materials of the property: _brick, wood, sandstone _

Narrative Description

(Describe the historic and current physical appearance and condition of the property. Describe
contributing and noncontributing resources if applicable. Begin with a summary paragraph that
briefly describes the general characteristics of the property, such as its location, type, style,
method of construction, setting, size, and significant features. Indicate whether the property has
historic integrity.)

Summary Paragraph

Originally owned by the master mason for construction of the Michigan State Capitol, and
located only two blocks south of it, the Glaister House stands in downtown Lansing on the
southwest corner of Walnut and Kalamazoo Streets and faces east. The home, now utilized as an
apartment building containing eight apartments, stands out as it is surrounded by commercial and
government buildings. Built in 1876, the two-story, 3,950 square foot, wood-frame Italianate
house has red brick walls and stands on a tall dark red-brown rock-face coursed ashlar sandstone
foundation. Its windows and doors display smooth stone trim now painted white. The building
has an asymmetrical cross-shaped footprint with the long rectangle containing the front and rear
faces stretching east and west, while the smaller rectangle forming the cross intersects just east of
the middle of the building. The roof is cross-gabled with classical cornices, with dentils, and
slender paired brackets under the extended eaves.
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Narrative Description

The house’s north-south rectangle intersects the longer east-west one just east of the middle of
the building. The house’s footprint is asymmetrical, with the northern arm the same width as the
southern but extending only one window bay north of the longer main section’s north fagcade
while the southern extends two window bays south of the main section’s south fagade. The
sandstone foundation and red brick exterior walls are separated by a dark fine-grained stone
water table painted white. The house’s windows all have white-painted smooth stone slab sills
and decorative smooth stone caps, displaying central keystone forms that rise above the cap on
either side and incised floral and vine forms, including a Christopher Dresser plant detail in each
keystone. The front and all other exterior doors have caps of similar form. The cross-gable roof
is clad in asphalt shingles. On the south cross section of the roof is a short brick chimney which
has been shortened since 1967. Since then, there has been a chimney removed from the north
cross section. The exact date that the chimneys were altered is unknown.

The house’s east-facing front has a gable-front center section, containing the main entrance,
flanked by a short side-gable wing on either side whose east front is recessed well back from the
main front. A broad six-step concrete staircase leads to the double-door front entrance, located
on the left/south side of the gable-front center section. The white-painted wood doors appear to
be the originals, each containing three panels in its lower part and a single tall, narrow window in
the upper. The first floor has two tall, narrow windows rising from floor level, the second three
shorter windows, one over the entry. The windows are one-over-one, double-hung; those in the
first and second story in the rest of the house match them. The front gable has an oculus window
with keystone devices at the four cardinal directions — each displaying an incised Christopher
Dresser-inspired plant motif.

The short east-facing portions of the north and south side-gable sections feature windows of the
same size and with the same trim as the center section’s — one window in the second story in the
shorter north wing, two each in the ground and second stories of the south. The north wing’s
short east face contains a now boarded-over door opening in the ground story. A six-step
concrete staircase leads up to a concrete platform or stoop in front of the now closed-in doorway.
To the south of the front stoop there is also a concrete staircase that leads down alongside the
south side of the east front’s projecting center section to a basement door. The basement door is a
white painted, three panel, wood door. Two windows provide light to that part of the basement,
one to the left of the door and the other to the right on the south wing. An outdoor light was also
added to the brick exterior, probably for safety purposes. The light is above the entrance door
and to the east.

The Sanborn maps appear to show a wraparound porch was added to the house’s front between
1906 and 1913. The porch covered the east elevation and wrapped around the east end of the
north side, ending against the north wing’s east face. A photo of the house taken sometime
between 1926 and 1937 shows the porch with square-plan concrete block support posts rising
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from ground level up to the top of the wooden spindlework porch railing and wooden Tuscan
columns rising above them to support a deck at the second-story level whose front was outlined
by another similar railing. The staircase up to the front entry, recessed into the porch, was topped
by a gable roof. A staircase also ran up to the part of the porch along the house’s north side near
the side entrance. A later view shows the same porch but without the second-story railing. A still
later view shows the front entry still fronted by a small gable-roof porch, retaining a block pier
and Tuscan column on each side of the opening, and also the part of the porch along the house’s
north side that sheltered the side entrance. The 1951 Sanborn map updated to 1965 appears to
show, because there is a small update patch over the front of the house, that the front door porch
was removed between 1951 and 1965; the porch fronting the north side of the house’s projecting
center front section was still in place. That side porch is also no longer present, leaving only a set
of wooden steps leading to that now closed-in side entrance.

The broad north side elevation fronts on the south side of Kalamazoo Street. The sandstone
foundation on this elevation contains several low windows that, set in segmental-arch-head
openings, give light to the basement. The north end of the north side-gable wing displays a slant-
sided bay window with a broad center and narrow side windows. The wood-trimmed bay
window has paneled bulkheads and a bracket and dentil-trimmed cornice beneath its asphalt-
shingled hip roof. In the second story directly above, there are two side-by-side matching tall,
narrow windows that have continuous sills and lintels and otherwise match the other windows of
the home. The gable above contains another oculus window that, finished like the front gable
one, has keystone forms, with incised plant designs, at the cardinal directions. The short
back/west side of the north wing contains another tall window in the first story. The rear ell that,
located behind/west of the side-gable cross section, runs east and west contains three windows
each on the first and second floors, the windows and their stone trim matching those in the rest of
the house, the first-floor ones taller than the second.

Other than the removal of the wraparound porch and the addition of a metal pole for a meter, the
north elevation of the house has changed comparatively little. However, the landscape has
changed. Where old photos show lawn with a sidewalk near the street, the area west from the bay
window fronting the rear ell has contained a paved parking area housing three or four cars for the
building’s apartment dwellers since before 1967.

The south and west elevations of the house that don’t face streets are more simply detailed. The
south elevation once faced another nearby house but now faces a parking lot and apartment
building farther south. The narrow, gabled west (back end) elevation has a ground-floor door
neat the southwest corner, reached by a short flight of wooden steps, and a second-floor white
wooden door reached by an unpainted modern, wood staircase. Both doors have white-painted
stone lintels incised with the same floral/vine detailing as the other door and window openings.
The Sanborn maps show that a small one-story garage was attached to the house’s rear end
sometime between 1926 and 1952. It was removed sometime after 1967, and that area is now
occupied by a small crushed stone-surface courtyard. A large modern office building stands
directly behind (west of) the house.
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The front landscape, historically lawn with a sidewalk near the street, now contains several large
walnut and pine trees and other smaller trees and shrubs that have replaced much of the lawn and
partly mask the front of the house from view. The pine trees were planted sometime after 1967
by the current owners’ family to provide some privacy from a busy street.

Inside the house’s east front entrance, a foyer/hallway against the south side of the gable-front
east-west-axis part of the house leads past what was described in a newspaper story on Glaister’s
funeral as the “main parlor” on the right/north, in the northeast corner of the gable-front section,
and another room, in the south wing, to a broader rear hall containing a dogleg staircase to the
second story. The staircase begins along the broader rear part of the hallway’s north side and
rises to the west, then to the south to a narrow second-story hallway. The staircase’s upper end
once rose into an open upper hall space at the second floor, with a passage around the opening’s
curving south and east side outlined by a balustrade. The open well was long ago enclosed with a
curving wall in the second story in place of the railing to meet fire code requirements.

The northeast parlor, entered through a broad double-door from the entry hall, has become the
resident owner’s bedroom. The south wing room (perhaps once a bedroom), containing a simple
black mantelpiece and raised chimney breast near the center of the windowless south side wall
opposite the door, is now a separate apartment. Directly behind/west of it in the west side of the
south wing is another narrow room that perhaps once served as a pantry but now houses a
kitchenette.

Adjacent west of the northeast front parlor, entered from off the broader rear part of the hall next
to the lower staircase landing, is another room the current owner states was the sitting room (it
was labeled the “rear parlor” in the Glaister funeral story) that contains the north bay window.
Now the owner’s living room, it was once connected to the parlor by a large square-head
opening containing double doors; a solid wall between the rooms has replaced the double-door
“archway.” Directly west of this one-time sitting room was the dining room. It was also
connected to the sitting room by a broad double-door opening. The sitting and dining room
spaces have been reconfigured, with the west end of the sitting room and part of the dining room
now made into the kitchen for the owner’s apartment and the west part of the former dining room
walled off as part of a separate rear apartment.

The center hallway runs west past the staircase’s lower end to another room, perhaps originally
the primary kitchen space, that occupies much of the rear ell’s south side and now houses
another apartment. From its south side a door leads out to a narrow fenced-in yard area
dominated by trees and shrubs. The entrance to the room from the hallway passes through a
double arch, the northerly archway straight ahead from the hall leading into the room itself while
the more southerly arch forms part of the passage between this room, a narrow pantry-like
space/now serving as a kitchen for one of the apartments, and the front south wing room.

The rooms have had work done to them over time to turn them into apartments. The center hall
has the original crown molding; it has been painted white. The rear parlor/sitting room and

dining room have been reconfigured, as noted above; the date of the work is unknown, but
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according to the current owner (Alice Sessions) the dry-walled section that separates her kitchen
from the apartment behind may have gone up in the 1980s. The owner’s north front apartment
retains the bay window. The trim and crown molding is original but has been painted white. The
walls have also been painted and there is no longer wallpaper on them. The original wood floors
still remain and the first floor main rooms retain an intricate design of inlaid woods. The
fireplace in the northeast parlor remains in place, though hidden from view by the owner’s
possessions, and there is a matching fireplace in the south parlor that is also still present but also
largely concealed behind a table and storage items.

The front hall staircase is the original and still has its dark wood newel post and railing and
balusters, now painted white. Today the staircase’s upper end is enclosed at the second floor with
a door at the head of the stairs separating the stairway from the second-floor hallway and a
curving full-height second-story wall in place of the open railing that once ringed the upper
landing. The hallway and stair treads have carpet over their original wood floors.

On the second floor, there are five apartments located off a narrow east-west hall. Toward the
back the hallway makes a jog to the north and then west again and descends a few steps entering
the west/rear ell, whose roof height is lower than in the front part of the house. All of the original
wood on the second floor has been painted white. The second story has undergone changes to
accommodate transforming the single-family home into apartments. However, it still maintains a
significant amount of its original features including wood floors and door and window trim, and
many of the changes are reversible.

Despite long years as an apartment building the house retains much if not most of its original
finishes. The downstairs rooms retain their wooden tall mopboards, architrave door and window
trim, and paneled doors, along with the original staircase. Most floors are carpeted, thus not
exposed to view, but in the entry to the north center parlor a portion of the wood floor, finished
in an ornamental pattern of different woods, is exposed to view, and the owner reports that this
ornamental parquet flooring remains in place is several front rooms. The northeast parlor and the
south front room retain original mantelpieces (that in the northeast parlor is covered over and not
visible while the south room one is so hidden by household goods as to be too inaccessible to be
carefully studied). The plastered ceilings retain elaborate cove moldings, and most rooms’
ceilings retain circular molded plaster centerpieces.
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Photographer: Unknown. Date Photographed: between 1926 and 1937. Northeast corner of the
Glaister house, camera facing southwest. Showing the two story porch and garage at the end of
the north facade.
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Photographer: Unknown. Date Photographed: between 1937 and 1952. Northeast corner of the
Glaister House, camera facing southwest. Showing the top railing of the porch removed.
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Photographer: Homer Sessions. Date photographed: 1967. Northeast corner of the Glaister
House, camera facing southwest. Showing the porch removed, except for the main and north
elevation entrances.
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8. Statement of Significance

Applicable National Register Criteria
(Mark "x" in one or more boxes for the criteria qualifying the property for National Register
listing.)

A. Property is associated with events that have made a significant contribution to the
broad patterns of our history.

X B. Property is associated with the lives of persons significant in our past.

C. Property embodies the distinctive characteristics of a type, period, or method of
construction or represents the work of a master, or possesses high artistic values,
or represents a significant and distinguishable entity whose components lack
individual distinction.

D. Property has yielded, or is likely to yield, information important in prehistory or
history.

Criteria Considerations
(Mark “x” in all the boxes that apply.)

A. Owned by a religious institution or used for religious purposes

B. Removed from its original location

C. A birthplace or grave

D. A cemetery

E. A reconstructed building, object, or structure

F. A commemorative property

G. Less than 50 years old or achieving significance within the past 50 years
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Areas of Significance
(Enter categories from instructions.)
Architecture

Period of Significance
_1876-1887

Significant Dates
1876 Year of house’s construction
_1887  Year of Richard Glaister’s death_

Significant Person
(Complete only if Criterion B is marked above.)
Richard Glaister

Cultural Affiliation
N/A

Architect/Builder
Richard Glaister (?)
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Statement of Significance Summary Paragraph (Provide a summary paragraph that includes
level of significance, applicable criteria, justification for the period of significance, and any
applicable criteria considerations.)

The Glaister House meets national register criterion B as the home of master stone mason
Richard Glaister, who, employed by N. Osburn & Co., contractor for the Michigan State Capitol
built in 1872-78, served as the company’s head of stonecutting for the capitol’s construction. The
house also meets national register criterion C as one of the few remaining Italianate houses in
Lansing and for retaining much of its historic interior as well as exterior finishes. The city’s
growth and development since the later nineteenth century have resulted in the loss of much of
the city’s nineteenth-century housing stock. The period of significance dates from 1876 when the
house was built until 1887 when Richard Glaister died.

Narrative Statement of Significance (Provide at least one paragraph for each area of
significance.)

In 1847, after long and hard deliberations in the state legislature, what is now Lansing was
selected as the future site of the seat of Michigan state government. The area, centrally located
within the southern Lower Peninsula but previously wilderness except for a small settlement
around mills to the north of the present downtown developed a few years earlier, was reportedly
chosen with the idea that its selection would forward the progression of settlement northward
from the early settled southeastern and south edges of the state. The platting of a town and
construction of the first wooden capitol building in the 1847-48 period started a rapid influx of
people to the area. In the 1854 state census the population of Lansing Township, which then
included the future city of Lansing, was listed as 1556. In 1860 the newly established city had a
population of 3085, and in 1870, eight years after the first of a number of railroad lines reaching
the city from all directions was built, the city’s population was listed as 5243. A new census
taken in April 1873 showed 8556 city residents (population figures from Lansing Improvement
Association, Lansing, the Capital of Michigan, 4-5).

The original wooden capitol and an additional office building built within a few years were soon
found inadequate in size for the rapidly expanding government of the growing state. There were
calls for a new capitol to be built in the early 1860s but the finances of the state and ongoing
discussions about moving the state’s capitol elsewhere delayed action. In 1871 the state
legislature voted $1,200,000 for construction of a new capitol in Lansing. A design competition
for the new capitol was won by Elijah E. Myers, an architect then of Springfield, Illinois, in
January 1872. In July 1872 the contract for the construction of the new capitol building was
awarded to N. Osburn & Co. of Rochester, New York. N. Osburn & Co. employed James
Appleyard, “who had worked for Osburn since before the Civil War,” as construction manager
and employed Richard Glaister as superintendent of stonework or head of stonecutting. Ground
was broken for the capitol July 25, 1872, and the completed building accepted by the state
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September 26, 1878 (Seale, 11, 20-21, 41; a primary source for Seale’s account are the six
scrapbooks of items relating to the capitol’s construction kept by O. A. Jenison and now held at
the Archives of Michigan).

Richard Glaister was born in Whitehaven, England, in 1826. In 1847 he married Deborah
Brough. Glaister’s 1887 obituary in Lansing’s The State Republican states that eighteen years
after their 1847 marriage, the Glaisters “came across the Atlantic, taking up their abode in
Ottawa, Canada, where Mr. Glaister had contract work to perform on the Parliament buildings.
From there he moved to Detroit to work on the city hall, and thence to Pittsburg for a contract
job on Trinity church. From Pittsburg he returned to Detroit and lived for six weeks, while action
on proposals for the capitol building [in Lansing] was pending, and when his bid for the stone
work was accepted he came here. That was in 1872, and Mr. Glaister with his family has lived
here ever since. His life work has been contract stone work, and by care in carrying it out he
accumulated some $100,000.” A biography in the 1891 Portrait and Biographical Album of
Ingham and Livingston Counties provides much the same information, but adds that “being
naturally of a roving disposition he came to the United States and Canada several times. He
made his first trip when he was twenty-seven years old [i.e. around 1853] and during that visit he
superintended the stone work of the Parliament house at Ottawa.” The 1891 biography states that
in 1864 the Glaisters settled in Ottawa, and in 1868 they moved to Detroit, where Glaister “took
charge of putting in the stone work of the city hall. Leaving Detroit he went to Pittsburg, Pa., to
build the Trinity Church and Chapel, as he had taken the contract for that building” (199).

Ground for the Parliament complex in Ottawa, comprised of the Parliament and Public
Department Buildings that flank it on either side, was broken in December 1859 and the
buildings completed in 1865 or 1866. Fuller and Jones (Thomas Fuller and Chilion Jones)
designed the Parliament Building and Stent and Laver (Thomas Stent and Augustus Laver) the
Public Department Buildings. Thomas McGreevy, a master builder from Quebec, served as
contractor for Parliament, while Jones, Haycock and Clarke of Port Hope, Ontario, were
contractors for the Public Department Buildings (Kalman, Vol. 2, 534-36; Ritchie, 18-23).
Glaister may have been employed directly or as a subcontractor by McGreevy on the Parliament
Building or by Jones, Haycock and Clarke on the flanking buildings that also formed part of the
Parliament complex, but the masonry work would have begun probably in 1860. The 1891
biography has Glaister working on the Parliament complex when he was around 27 years old, but
that would have been around 1853, well before construction began. By 1864, when the Glaisters
actually settled in Ottawa according to the 1891 sketch, the masonry work would have been well
along or nearing completion. If Glaister’s “roving disposition” brought him to Ottawa before the
family’s 1864 move there, it most likely would have been around 1860 when the stonework was
in its early stages. The readily available sources — not surprisingly — offer no information on
contractors beyond the general contractors; they thus provide no direct confirmation of Glaister’s
role.

The Detroit City Hall, designed by architect James Anderson of Detroit, was built in 1866-71.

Silas Farmer’s Detroit history reports that a contract was awarded to Charles Stange for
construction of the basement Aug. 28, 1866, and on Feb. 2, 1867, N. Osborne & Son of
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Rochester, NY, was selected as contractor for the building above the basement (a The Detroit
Free Press story of Feb. 14, 1868, lists the firm name as N. Osborne & Co.

“N. Osborne” was really Nehemiah Osburn. Osburn was born in Pompey, NY, in 1801, and died
in Rochester in 1892. He arrived in Rochester in 1821 and at the age of twenty “here began
business as a contractor and builder, having already gained some knowledge of the carpenter’s
trade” (Peck, vol. 2, 1392). “N. Osborn” was listed as a dealer in lumber and Nehemiah Osborn
under “Builders — contractors or masons” in the 1838 Sketches of Rochester by Henry O’Reilly
(372-73). Nehemiah Osborn & Brother were cited by O’Reilly as furnishing the woodwork for
the then recently built New Market, a 200-foot long, with two eighty-foot long wings, brick and
stone building in Rochester (377). Osburn later made a specialty of government work. The
sketch lists as presumably key commissions the Chicago and Milwaukee custom houses, U.S.
courthouse in Baltimore, and the Detroit City Hall and Michigan Capitol (1392). The city of
Detroit took possession of the completed city hall building in June 1871 and a formal opening
took place on July 4%,

Neither Farmer nor Clarence Burton’s The City of Detroit list subcontractors or contractor’s staff
for the Detroit City Hall project — Glaister presumably served as the subcontractor for the
superstructure masonry work.

Glaister’s obituary and the 1891 biographical sketch both list him as working on Pittsburgh’s
Trinity Episcopal Church after the Detroit City Hall project. The church was designed by
Detroit’s own Gordon W. Lloyd. Its chapel was built first, in 1869, and the church in 1869-72.
The Gothic church with its massive stone walls survives today as Trinity Cathedral (Harriss, 58-
68). A church history lists the contractors for the building as “Bullman & Gleister,” Gleister
perhaps being a mistake for Glaister (67).

Unlike these earlier buildings for which Glaister’s association as contractor or masonry
contractor is difficult to document, Glaister’s role in the construction of the Michigan State
Capitol 1s more clearly documented. The Lansing State Republican carried a number of brief
items on the capitol building’s progress. One from the July 25, 1873, issue may have been the
earliest to mention Richard Glaister. It states that “Richard Glaister, who has charge of the stone-
cutters, is one of the firm of Osburn & Co., and a man of great practical experience. He has had
tempting offers to take charge of the stone-cutters employed on the New York State House at
Albany.” (Files of Lansing newspapers from this period do not exist, and such newspaper notices
are available only because of the O. A. Jenison scrapbooks.)

In 1872, while Glaister was likely already working on the capitol building, the family moved to
Lansing. The 1891 biography — the only piece of evidence regarding the nominated Glaister
House’s date of construction in the absence of newspapers, city directories, tax records, and
building permits from that time — states that the house was built in 1876 (199). He lived there
with his family until he ended his own life in his house on the 22" of March 1887. The State
Republican of that date stated that Glaister “committed suicide at his residence, No. 402 Walnut
street, south, this morning a few minutes before seven o’clock, by shooting himself through the
head with a Winchester rifle.” The story’s very graphic description of the body as found once the
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locked door to his first-floor bedroom was forced is followed by the coroner’s jury finding that
death resulted “from a gun shot inflicted by his own hand during temporary aberration of mind
induced by nervous prostration and physical disability.” The article stated Glaister had been ill
since a hunting trip the previous fall (The State Republican, March 22, 1887). His widow
Deborah continued to live in the house until her death in 1896, and the directories show that a
daughter, Isabelle Hartley, and several other family members lived there until around 1911 or 12
when it was sold to Dr. Joseph Bartow.

The 1912 directory is the first to list Dr. Joseph G. Bartow, and Bartow descendants have
continued to own the house since Bartow’s purchase about that time. Joseph Bartow was born on
October 23, 1863, in Williamston, MI, to Andrew and Ellen Bartow (MI Dept. of Health, Joseph
Grant Bartow death certificate). His 1937 obituary states that he attended Williamston schools
and Valparaiso College (Valparaiso, IN) and “practiced medicine in Owosso, Shaftsburg, and
Williamston” before moving to Lansing. Joseph married Flora Emily Murray in 1887 and they
had three children, Ethel, Clarence and Zarepha (Joseph Grant Bartow family tree). Dr. Bartow
and his family used the house as a single family home until 1919 when they started to rent out
apartments. The family still lived in one of the units for some time and Dr. Bartow used a
basement space as the office for his optometry practice. The house continued to be used as
apartments until 1972 when the Bartow family allowed a local church to use it as a halfway
house for a year. After this year the apartment use resumed, and it continues today, with Alice
Sessions (Dr. Bartow’s grand-daughter), one of the two owners, living in the one-time main
parlor apartment (Lansing city directories, 1887-1980).

Architecture
The Glaister House is one of only a small number of Italianate houses that have survived in
Lansing. Others have been lost to the city’s growth and development over the years and
especially to the expansion of the downtown area into the oldest residential areas around it where
other examples were located and to the large-scale land clearances in the area just west of the
State Capitol in the years since World War II to provide space for the state governmental
complex and its parking lots. In addition to the Glaister House, the other survivors that remain
outstanding examples in architectural terms in the Lansing context and that retain the best states
of integrity are:
e Alvin Whitehead-James Seager House (listed in the Michigan State Register of Historic
Places), located at S. Grand Avenue and Hillsdale Street (built c. 1877)
e M. L. Coleman House, 532 E. Shiawassee, facing east on N. Larch Street (probably built
in the 1875-80 period)

A third important example, the 1880 Morgan B. Hungerford House, 602 W. lonia, retains its
brick cross-gable Italianate form and exterior detailing, including a massive bracketed front door
hood and ornamental stone or cast cement window caps, but it has been largely rebuilt inside to
house offices and now forms the front end of a much expanded gable-roof office building.

Other examples illustrated in the c. 1972 Memorandum ’76: Historic Lansing, prepared by a
Lansing Historic District Study Committee designated by the city, included two symmetrical-
front hip-roof brick examples, the Cast-Wiest and C. C. Darling houses. These would be
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outstanding landmarks in the city today, but both were demolished in the early 1960s before the
committee began its work. Another Italianate house already demolished by then was the 1875
Appleyard House, 123 N. Walnut, a near duplicate of the Glaister House built for James
Appleyard, who served as construction supervisor on the State Capitol project — it was
demolished in 1956 as part of the state government complex expansion. Two of the Italianate
houses identified in the study committee’s survey of landmark buildings, the Squire Haven
House, a hip-roof brick building with rooftop belvedere at 213 S. Grand Avenue (much altered
over the years through use as a restaurant but retaining the basic form), and James 1. Mead
House, 429 N. Cedar, another brick house with belvedere, have been demolished since the report
came out. The city contains a few other brick examples, either much more simple in style or
retaining a much lower state of integrity. The Glaister House is one of the city’s outstanding
examples both for the overall quality of its finishes and for its high state of integrity, inside as
well as out, despite the use for apartments for nearly a century.
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The State Republican, Lansing, M1
e Brief item about Glaister/Osburn & Co. and State Capitol construction. July 25, 1873.
State Capitol construction clippings file.
e “Dead in His Bed Chamber. Alderman Richard Glaister Suicides by Shooting Himself.”
March 22, 1887.
e “The Last Sad Rites. The Funeral of Alderman Glaister This Afternoon.” <arch 24, 1887.

Previous documentation on file (NPS):

____ preliminary determination of individual listing (36 CFR 67) has been requested
____previously listed in the National Register

_____previously determined eligible by the National Register

____ designated a National Historic Landmark
___recorded by Historic American Buildings Survey #
____recorded by Historic American Engineering Record #
__recorded by Historic American Landscape Survey #

Primary location of additional data:

__X_State Historic Preservation Office
_____ Other State agency
___ Federal agency
__ Local government
__ University
____ Other

Name of repository:

Historic Resources Survey Number (if assigned):

10. Geographical Data

Acreage of Property 0.15

Use either the UTM system or latitude/longitude coordinates
Latitude/Longitude Coordinates (decimal degrees)
Datum if other than WGS84:

(enter coordinates to 6 decimal places)

1. Latitude: 42.729761 Longitude: -84.557341
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2. Latitude: Longitude:

3. Latitude: Longitude:

4. Latitude: Longitude:

Or

UTM References
Datum (indicated on USGS map):

NAD 1927 or NAD 1983
1. Zone: Easting: Northing:
2. Zone: Easting: Northing:
3. Zone: Easting: Northing:
4. Zone: Easting : Northing:

Verbal Boundary Description (Describe the boundaries of the property.)

Property in the city of Lansing, Ingham County, Michigan, described as follows:
East six rods of lot one, block one hundred thirty-nine. Original plat of the City of Lansing.

Boundary Justification (Explain why the boundaries were selected.)

Includes the entire area on which the building stands.

11. Form Prepared By

name/title: _Ashleigh Czapek

organization: State Historic Preservation Office

street & number: _702 W Kalamazoo St _

city or town; Lansing state: __ MI__zip code:_48909
e-mail_ashleigh.czapek@hotmail.com
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telephone: 616-822-2879
date:___10/27/2016

Additional Documentation

Submit the following items with the completed form:

e Maps: A USGS map or equivalent (7.5 or 15 minute series) indicating the property's
location.

e Sketch map for historic districts and properties having large acreage or numerous
resources. Key all photographs to this map.

e Additional items: (Check with the SHPO, TPO, or FPO for any additional items.)
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Photographs

Submit clear and descriptive photographs. The size of each image must be 1600x1200 pixels
(minimum), 3000x2000 preferred, at 300 ppi (pixels per inch) or larger. Key all photographs
to the sketch map. Each photograph must be numbered and that number must correspond to
the photograph number on the photo log. For simplicity, the name of the photographer,
photo date, etc. may be listed once on the photograph log and doesn’t need to be labeled on
every photograph.

Photo Log

Description of Photograph(s) and number, include description of view indicating direction of
camera:

Name of Property: Glaister House

City or Vicinity: Lansing, MI

County: Ingham State: MI

Photographer: Todd Walsh
Date Photographed: October 12, 2016

Photo 1 of 17: East/front facade, camera direction west
MI Ingham Glaister House 0001

Photo 2 of 17: East front, camera facing west
MI Ingham_Glaister House 0002

Photo 3 of 17: Cornice and window cap detail, south and east facades
MI Ingham_Glaister House 0003

Photo 4 of 17: North fagade, camera facing south-southwest
MI Ingham_Glaister House 0004

Photo 5 of 17: North and west facades, camera facing south-southeast
MI Ingham_Glaister House 0005

Photo 6 of 17: Entrance hallway facing west, door to south room (L), door to main parlor (R)
MI Ingham_Glaister House 0006

Photo 7 of 17: Staircase and banister, camera facing west-northwest
MI Ingham_Glaister House 0007

Photo 8 of 17: Entrance hallway facing east
MI Ingham_Glaister House 0008

Photo 9 of 17: Bay window in west north parlor, camera facing north
MI Ingham_Glaister House 0009
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Photo 10 of 17: West parlor, camera facing northwest
MI Ingham_Glaister House 0010
Photo 11 of 17: Original inlaid wood floor, entry into west parlor
MI Ingham_Glaister House 0011
Photo 12 of 17: South room, camera facing south
MI Ingham_Glaister House 0012
Photo 13 of 17: Archways in rear/west space now apartment 2, camera facing east
MI Ingham_Glaister House 0013
Photo 14 of 17: Upstairs front room, northeast corner, camera facing northeast
MI Ingham_Glaister House 0014
Photo 15 of 17: Upstairs hallway, camera facing west. Right-hand wall encloses former
upstairs stair hall
MI Ingham Glaister House 0015
Photo 16 of 17: South and east facades in broader setting. Lewis Cass State Office Building
to right across Kalamazoo Street
MI Ingham_Glaister House 0016
Photo 17 of 17: North and west facades in broader setting. Grady Porter County Building to
left across Walnut Street
MI Ingham Glaister House 0017

Paperwork Reduction Act Statement: This information is being collected for applications to the National Register of Historic
Places to nominate properties for listing or determine eligibility for listing, to list properties, and to amend existing listings. Response
to this request is required to obtain a benefit in accordance with the National Historic Preservation Act, as amended (16 U.S.C.460
et seq.).

Estimated Burden Statement: Public reporting burden for this form is estimated to average 100 hours per response including

time for reviewing instructions, gathering and maintaining data, and completing and reviewing the form. Direct comments regarding
this burden estimate or any aspect of this form to the Office of Planning and Performance Management. U.S. Dept. of the Interior,
1849 Con, DC.
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